

Formatting Notes: Red strikethrough/underline indicates proposed addition/deletions.

Green double underline indicates the relocation of text.

14.16.205 Pipeline Safety—Sensitive Utility Corridor Overlay.

(1) Purpose.

The purpose of this Section is to help prevent damage and minimize unnecessary risk to the public health, safety, and welfare in direct proximity to hazardous liquid and natural gas transmission pipelines by:

- (a) Supplementing existing federal and state regulations related to hazardous liquid and natural gas pipeline corridor management.
- (b) Ensuring early communication between those developing property and pipeline operators.
- (c) Minimizing the likelihood of damage to existing pipelines during development activities.
- (d) Avoiding exposure of land uses with high on-site populations and/or are difficult to evacuate and land uses that serve emergency functions to the risk of injury or damage in the event of a pipeline failure.
- (e) Helping reduce adverse impacts to life and property in the event of a pipeline failure.

(2) Sensitive Utility Corridor Overlay.

The provisions of this Section apply to all existing and proposed land uses within the Sensitive Utility Corridor. For purposes of this Section, the Sensitive Utility Corridor is that geographic area located within 500 feet of any hazardous liquid or gas transmission pipelines as delineated by Skagit County and depicted on the Skagit County Sensitive Utility Corridor Overlay map on file in the Skagit County Planning and Development Services department and on the official County website.

(3) High Consequence Land Uses and Essential Public Facilities

(a) A "High Consequence Land Use" is a land use that if located in the vicinity of a hazardous liquid or gas transmission pipeline represents an unusually high risk in the event of a pipeline failure due to characteristics of the inhabitants or functions of the use.

High consequence land uses include:

- (i) Land uses that involve a high-density on-site population and/or that are difficult to evacuate. These uses include schools, hospitals, clinics, multi-family housing, facilities exclusively for elderly or handicapped including adult group care facilities, stadiums or arenas, and day care centers, however does not include group care facilities or adult family homes.
- (ii) Land uses that serve critical "lifeline" or emergency functions, such as fire and police facilities, utilities providing regional service, or water supplies that if exposed to a significant risk that will curtail its lifeline function for a critical period of time.
- (iii) Uses with similar characteristics as determined by the Administrative Official.

(b) Requirements

- (i) New occupied buildings for high consequence land uses and essential public facilities are prohibited within the Sensitive Utility Corridor, provided that such a development may be allowed within the Sensitive Utility Corridor but outside the Potential Impact Radius of the relevant pipeline(s) if the applicant can determine and demonstrate the radius, consistent with 49 CFR 192.903, to the satisfaction of the Administrative Official.

Moved down [1]: a land use that if located in the vicinity of a hazardous liquid or gas transmission pipeline represents an unusually high risk in the event of a pipeline failure due to characteristics of the inhabitants or functions of the use. High consequence land uses include:¶

Deleted: Proposed New Definitions

14.04.020: ¶

Hazardous liquid and natural gas transmission pipelines: pipelines designed and operated for the purpose of transporting oil, diesel, jet fuel, gasoline, other petroleum products, or natural gas. ¶

High Consequence Land Use:

Moved down [2]: Land uses that involve a high-density on-site population and/or that are difficult to evacuate. These uses include schools, hospitals, clinics, multi-family housing, facilities exclusively for elderly or handicapped including adult group care facilities, stadiums or arenas, and day care centers, however does not include group care facilities or adult family homes.

Moved down [3]: Land uses that serve critical "lifeline" or emergency functions, such as fire and police facilities, utilities providing ¶

Deleted: (1)

Deleted: ¶

Moved down [4]: (3) Uses with similar characteristics as determined by the ¶

Deleted: (3) ...ses with similar characteristics characteristics as determined by the ¶

Deleted: Sensitive Utility Corridor: the geographic area located within [up to 660] fe¶

Deleted: (1)

Deleted: (2) Determination of

Deleted: [up to 660]

Deleted: one or more of the four major

Deleted: within Skagit County. The pipeline locations and boundaries of the sensitive utili¶

Deleted: . Maps portraying the sensitive utility corridor shall be on file for public inspection

Deleted: (3) Application of Sensitive Utility Corridor Overlay Review.¶

Moved down [5]: Buildings, structures, land divisions, binding site plans, and/or land uses ¶

Deleted: (a)

Moved (insertion) [1]

Moved (insertion) [2]

Moved (insertion) [3]

Moved (insertion) [4]

Deleted: [up to 660] feet of the

Deleted: nearest a hazardous liquid or natural gas transmission pipeline.

(ii) Applications for modifications and/or expansions to existing high consequence land uses or essential public facilities located within the Sensitive Utility Corridor must include a statement demonstrating that the applicant considered techniques to avoid an increase in the level of risk in the event of a pipeline failure to the greatest extent possible, and where feasible, reduce the risk compared to the existing development. Techniques to minimize or reduce risk are available on the county website at www.skagitcounty.net/pipelinesafety.

(4) Sensitive Utility Corridor Protection Requirements.

- (a) No significant land disturbance or construction or expansion of structures are allowed within hazardous liquid or natural gas transmission pipelines easements without the express written consent of the pipeline operator.
- (b) Easements and setbacks must be identified and protected prior to and during construction by placement of a temporary barricade and on-site notices. Barricades and on-site notices are subject to review throughout the development process.

(5) Application Requirements.

Buildings, structures, land divisions, binding site plans, and/or land uses and their associated permits/approvals, which lie within the Sensitive Utility Corridor, shall be subject to the provisions of this subsection.

- (a) The Department must notify the transmission pipeline operator(s) at the earliest possible stage of application review, and provide the operator 15 days to provide comments on the development application prior to approval. Any comments provided by the operator will be passed on to the applicant. Planning and Development Services may require modifications to project proposals in response to operator comments.
- (b) Applicants for development permits within the Sensitive Utility Corridor on parcels including pipeline easement(s) must show the location of the pipeline easement on the site plan and such permits will be conditioned that applicants notify utilities through the one-call locator service prior to any land disturbance.
- (c) All land division applications for property within the Sensitive Utility Corridor must include:
 - (i) A note on the subdivision map including the following language: The subject property is located within the Sensitive Utility Corridor Overlay which is defined as an area within [up to] 500 feet of one or more major hazardous liquid or gas transmission pipelines within Skagit County.

[Note to code publisher: Also amend SCC 14.18.200(2) to include new subsection (x) with the language shown in (c)(i) above.]

- (ii) A statement demonstrating the applicant considered locating the building envelopes away from the transmission pipeline.
- (d) SEPA environmental checklists for all development within the Sensitive Utility Corridor must include reference to affected pipeline and provide information concerning any impact the activity will have upon the integrity of the transmission pipeline(s).
- (6) Notice and Acknowledgement. The owner of any parcel, for which an application for a development permit within the Sensitive Utility Corridor is submitted, must record a title notification with the Skagit County Auditor. The notice must include the following language:

NOTICE AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
SENSITIVE UTILITY CORRIDOR OVERLAY

Permit Number: _____

Deleted: (ii)
Deleted: M
Deleted: [up to 660] feet of the
Deleted: nearest a hazardous liquid or natural gas transmission pipeline
Deleted: be designed
Deleted: include but
Deleted: not limited to:
Deleted: (A) Site design elements, such as increasing the distance between occupied structures, or structures that provide critical lifeline functions, and the hazardous liquid or natural gas transmission pipeline.¶
Deleted: (B) Building features, such as building design and construction methods/materials to provide greater protection to on-site populations or to expedite evacuation.¶
Deleted: (C) Technological features, such as building alarms or intercom systems to notify building occupants of the need to evacuate or other features that help avoid or limit damage and promote safety in the event of a pipeline failure.¶
Deleted: (D) Operational features, such as emergency plans, early detection systems, notification and education programs for building occupants concerning pipeline safety.¶
Deleted: (iii) Modifications to existing buildings that do not increase the onsite populations or impede or hinder evacuation routes are not required to comply with subsection []
Deleted: (ii) Setbacks for buildings, []
Deleted: (iv) The required setback fr[]
Deleted: Submittal
Deleted: .
Deleted: <#>Prior to the issuance of an []
Formatted: Left
Moved (insertion) [5]
Deleted: pipeline operators
Deleted: provided
Deleted: pipeline company
Deleted: based on severity of risk
Deleted: <#>If no response is []
Deleted: required overlay setbacks ar[]
Deleted: 660
Deleted: of the four
Deleted: (e) . All other applicable []
Deleted: shall
Deleted: The content and form must be []
Deleted: shall be notarized and shall be []

Property Legal Description:

Property Address/Location:

NOTICE

The above referenced property is located wholly or partially within the Sensitive Utility Corridor Overlay and within ~~500 feet of one or more hazardous liquid or natural gas transmission pipelines. This disclosure is~~ notice that the subject property ~~may be~~ within the "Potential Impact Radius" of a transmission pipeline as identified in the gas transmission pipeline integrity management regulations (49 CFR 192.903). Any development within the Sensitive Utility Corridor Overlay may be subject to safety, maintenance, or nuisance potential that may arise due to the proximity of a hazardous liquid and/or natural gas transmission pipeline to this property. The subject pipeline(s) are depicted on the maps attached as exhibit(s).

Deleted: [up to 660]

Deleted: of

Deleted: the four major

Deleted: in Skagit County.

Deleted: shall be

Deleted: is

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I, _____, the owner of the referenced property, hereby acknowledge that I have read and understand the NOTICE provided above. I understand that this NOTICE AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT will be recorded with the Skagit County Auditor.

The Auditor will convey notice of its contents to all persons or entities acquiring or obtaining an interest or right to occupancy in or on the subject property. I have freely executed this ACKNOWLEDGEMENT as a condition of approval for permit/subdivision/binding site plan application number _____, as required by SCC 14.16.205(6).

Deleted: ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Deleted: 5

Dated the _____ day of _____, 20 ____.

Owner Signature _____

Owner Signature _____

Printed Name _____

Printed Name _____

(Acknowledgement for Individual Grantor)

(Acknowledgement for Corporate Grantor)